
 
 

  NOTICE OF IONE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Ione City Hall - 385 W Second Street - Ione, Oregon 

Monday, February 13, 2023 
6:00 pm 

 
This agenda is subject to change up to 24 hours in advance of the meeting.  Attendees are 
advised that an audio recording may be made of the meeting.  The meeting location is accessible 
to persons with disabilities. 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance  
2. Sheriff’s Report 
3. Public Comment(s) 

4. Approval of  January 10, 2022 Minutes 

5. Action Items 
Item Financials 

a. Approval of the following bills: 
 

• Anderson Perry & Associates 
• Box R Water Analysis Laboratory 
• CenturyLink 
• John Deere Credit 
• HD Fowler Company 
• Morrow County Grain Growers, Inc 
• Pendleton Electric Company 
• Pettyjohn's Builders Supply 

 
 
• Oregon Backflow Testing  
• Sanitary Disposal, Inc 
• The Blanc Firm LLC 
• US Cellular 
• VISA 
• Payroll Taxes 
• CIS Benefits 
• Payroll 

 
Item Permit Request(s) 

a. None 

Item New Business  
a. Resolution 2023-01 A Resolution Authorizing And Approving A Request For Federal 

Financing Through The United States Department Of Agriculture (USDA) For A 
Wastewater Project 

b. Resolution 2023-02 A Resolution Authorizing And Approving A Request For Federal 
Financing Through The Department Of Environmental Quality (DEQ) For A Wastewater 
Project 

c. Ordinance 2023-01  Wastewater System Regulations 
d. Camera Surveillance for the City of Ione 
e. Resident Use of City Equipment and Debris Pile for Fee 

Item Old Business  

a. 

Sewer System Update 
• USDA Loan and Grant 
• DEQ Interim Funding  
• Other 

6. Reports 
• Mayor's Report 
• Public Works' Report 
• Clerk/Recorder's Report 
7. Adjournment 



1 of 3 
 
 

 
CITY OF IONE COUNCIL MEETING 

January 10, 2023 
6:00 pm 

Ione City Hall 
MINUTES 

 
Present: Rodrick Taylor, Former Mayor   
 Michael Skow, Current Mayor 
 Beverly Benson, Council Chair 
 Jason Carson, Councilor 

 Sabrina Bailey Cave, Councilor 
  Christopher Cave, Councilor  

 Mark Patton, Councilor  
 Brian Spivey, Councilor    

 Shad Hass, Public Works 
 Elizabeth Peterson, City Administrator 
 Jerry Rietmann, Volunteer City Planner 
 Dane Maben, Engineer, Anderson Perry & Associates 
 

Guests Present: Scott Carter, Criminal Sargent, Morrow County Sheriff’s Office  
 Sarah Skow 
 Beckett Skow 
 Nash Skow 
 Sloan Skow 
 Elizabeth Hickerson 
   
Meeting Call to Order:  Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm and led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. Ms. Peterson completed roll Call.    
 
Approval of Minutes: The December 13, 2022 minutes were reviewed. Councilor Skow 
moved to accept minutes as written. Councilor Cave seconded the motion.  
Vote:  All Ayes  
 
Sheriff’s Report: Sheriff’s Report:  Criminal Sargent Scott Carter presented the 
February 2022 Morrow County Sheriff’s Office (MSCO) report for Ione: 

• 15 Incidents 
• 6 Area Checks 
• 1 Shots Fired (Fireworks)  
• 28 hours Patrol Time 
• 64 hours School Resource Officer  

 

Public Comments:  None 
 
 



2 of 3 
 
 

 

Permits:   None 
 
Financial Reports and Bills: The December 2022 bills and financials are attached to the 
agenda. The Council reviewed the financial reports and monthly bills. December deposits: 
$18477.79  and December  bills: $133,284.42. Councilor Cave moved to accept the financial as. 
Council Chair Benson seconded the motion. 
Vote:  All Ayes 
 
New Business:  
 
Fiscal Year 2020-21 Auditors Report.   The Council reviewed the Audit Report submitted by 
Barnett and Moro.  Each councilor received a copy prior to the meeting.  The issues found by the 
auditor were that a material weakness in internal control due to lack of segregation of duties 
because of a limited number of staff employed.  It was noted that it would be unreasonable to hire 
additional staff to correct this issue. The clerk is not an authorized signer on bank accounts and all 
checks require two council members signatures. The Mayor and Council review financials at 
monthly meeting.  It was noted that there was over expenditure of $155 in the Street Fund.  Council 
Chair Benson moved to accept the Auditor’s Report as  presented. Councilor Patton seconded the 
motion.  
Vote:  All Ayes   
 
Swearing in of Mayor.  Mayor Taylor swore in Michael Skow as the new City Mayor at 6:09 
pm.  After the swearing in, Mayor Skow took over the meeting and Former Mayor Taylor left at  
6:11 pm. 
 
Swearing in of Council Members.  Mayor Skow swore in the newly elected Councilors: 
 

1. 6:12 pm  Jason Carson was sworn in as a new Councilor. 
2. 6:13 pm  Beverly Benson was sworn in for a new term as Councilor. 
3. 6:14 pm  Brian Spivey was sworn in for a new term as Councilor. 
4. 6:15 pm  SaBrina Bailey-Cave was sworn in for a new term as Councilor. 

 
Election of Council Chair.  Councilor Patton nominated and moved that Councilor Benson 
be re-elected as Council Chair.  Councilor Spivey seconded the motion. 
Vote:  All Ayes   
 
Old Business:   
 
Public Meeting.  Ms. Peterson informed the Council that the proposed Wastewater System 
public meeting for the is scheduled for Tuesday, January 24, 2023 at 5:30pm.  The notice will be 
published in the January 11, 2023 Heppner Gazette-Times and notices will be placed at the City 
Hall Community bulletin board , the Post Office and the Bank of Eastern Oregon.  The meeting 
will be held in City Hall.  It will be moved to the Legion Hall if there is not enough room in City 
Hall.  LaDonn McElligott at the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) has asked that 
attendees at the meeting be informed that hook-up is mandatory and that construction and easement 
contracts will need to be signed by the landowners and address monthly fees. 
  



3 of 3 
 
 

 
Sewer System Update:   
1. The Council tasked Ms. Peterson in contacting the City Attorney regarding the legalities of 

making the installation of new septic tanks and hooking up to the City’s wastewater system 
mandatory.  She will also speak to Ms. McElligott at the USDA for her advice on the matter. 

2. The Port of Morrow’s Vac-truck will in Ione tomorrow and the next to vac the water lines. 
3. Mr. Hass will coordinate a date and time with Tim Patton, Port of Morrow and a representative 

of Trans-Canada to meet at Johnson Grade where the gas lines are located. 
4. The Council was informed that Ms. McElligott stated that only $10,000,000 was currently 

available for projects.  More funds are expected to be available by March 2023. 
5. The USDA only received one protest regarding the project.  The persons were concerned about 

the flow of the drain field to their property’s groundwater.  
6. Mr. Maben shared that he had met with Bob Nation a supplier regarding pricing of tanks and 

other components for the project.  Price for a 1,000 fiberglass tank will be $5,000 and the price 
for a 1,500 fiberglass tank will be $5,900. 

7. The Council discussed the necessity of a second line for the system in case the first line fails.  
Costs needs to be estimated for the second line.   

8. There will eight total pumps at the lift stations. Two tanks above 10,000 gallons liquid only.  
There will be a tank for each zone of the drain field. The drain field will be pressurized and 
power will need to be installed.  The drain field will require automation. 

 
Mayor’s Report   
 
No report given.  
 
Public Works Report 
 
Mr. Hass informed the Council that the water main in the park broke late afternoon today.  Mr. 
Hass went to Hermiston to get buy supplies to fix the pipe in the morning.  Therefore, the restrooms 
had to be closed for the night.   
 
Recorder Report 
 
No report given. 
 
Adjournment:  Being as there is no other further business before the council, Mayor Taylor 
adjourned the meeting at 7:23 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
     
Michael Skow, Mayor      Rodrick Taylor, Former Mayor 
 
Attested by: 
 
 
  
Elizabeth Peterson, City Administrator 



Date
Check 
Number Payee Amount

01/13/2023 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service 2,766.84$        
01/27/2023 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service 2,766.84$        
01/23/2023 EFT Oregon Dept. of Revenue 1,397.91$        
01/06/2023 EFT City County Insurance 3,037.92$        
01/10/2023 11548 Barnett & Moro, P.C. 13,000.00$      
01/10/2023 11549 Box R Water Analysis Laboratory 60.50$             
01/10/2023 11550 CenturyLink 352.38$           
01/10/2023 11551 Columbia Basin Electric Cooperative, Inc 2,397.42$        
01/10/2023 11552 Miller & Sons Inc 85.43$             
01/10/2023 11553 Morrow County Grain Growers, Inc. 95.18$             
01/10/2023 11554 Pettyjohn's Builders Supply 92.53$             
01/10/2023 11555 Quill 388.29$           
01/10/2023 11556 Sanitary Disposal, Inc 99.65$             
01/10/2023 11557 Sykes Publishing 257.46$           
01/10/2023 11558 US Cellular 72.79$             
01/10/2023 11559 Anderson Perry & Associates 35,998.21$      
01/18/2023 11560 John Deere Credit 576.88$           
01/18/2023 11561 Quill 67.74$             
01/18/2023 11562 Stripe Rite 8,770.00$        
01/18/2023 11563 US Cellular 145.73$           
01/18/2023 11564 Visa 1,374.87$        
01/18/2023 11566 Sykes Publishing 127.88$           
1/27/2023 11567 Paula Morris 60.00$             

Total Checks 73,992.45$      

January 2023 Checks



Date General
General 

EFT

 
Capital 
Outlay Streets Water EFT Water State Revenue Comments 0

1/3/2023 144.05$        $        144.05 
1/5/2023 99.51$          $          99.51 
1/6/2023 47.00$          $          47.00 
1/9/2023 94.00$          $          94.00 

1/10/2023 47.04$          $          47.04 
1/11/2023 2,628.98$    $     2,628.98 
1/17/2023 47.00$          $          47.00 
1/19/2023 8,949.94$   2,160.51$     2,732.00$   99.49$         Rent, OLCC, Franchise Fees. Property Taxes  $   13,941.94 
1/23/2023 493.76$      94,478.00$   OLCC, SCA  $   94,971.76 
1/24/2023 1,260.50$   52.49$          $     1,312.99 
1/27/2023 47.00$          $          47.00 
1/30/2023 19.56$        896.13$      47.00$         Cigarette Tax  $        962.69 
1/31/2023 36.13$        Interest  $          36.13 

9,499.39$   -$          -$          96,638.51$   7,517.61$   724.58$       -$               $114,380.09

Deposit Detail January 2023



 3:56 PM
 02/09/23
 Accrual Basis

 City of Ione
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual-General Fund

 July 2022 through January 2023

1

Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

101 · Cash on Hand 0.00 55,400.00 -55,400.00

103 · Interest 352.25 231.00 121.25

104 · State Liquor 4,307.27 4,083.35 223.92

105 · Public Utility Franchise 13,673.84 13,416.69 257.15

106 · Cigarette Tax 135.35 160.44 -25.09

107 · License & Permits 224.82 581.00 -356.18

109 · Other 3,160.00 0.00 3,160.00

110 · Donation  (Miscellaneous) 500.00

125 · Property Tax 74,224.91 76,000.00 -1,775.09

127 · RV Park Reservation 613.88 2,041.00 -1,427.12

135 · Capital Credit Refund (Capital Credit Refunds) 1,433.56

136 · Animal Control 0.00 125.00 -125.00
138 · Building Rent 1,225.00 1,225.00 0.00

Total Income 99,850.88 153,263.48 -53,412.60

Gross Profit 99,850.88 153,263.48 -53,412.60

Expense
A-PERSONAL SERVICES

201 · Maintenance 19,635.88 17,500.00 2,135.88

202 · City Clerk 19,451.25 15,155.00 4,296.25

203 · Payroll Tax
OR - Unemployment Company 172.87
203 · Payroll Tax - Other 3,472.22 2,916.69 555.53

Total 203 · Payroll Tax 3,645.09 2,916.69 728.40

204 · Employee Benefits 6,495.87 7,291.68 -795.81
206 · Temporary Labor 0.00 5,250.00 -5,250.00

Total A-PERSONAL SERVICES 49,228.09 48,113.37 1,114.72

B-MATERIALS & SERVICES
209 · City Scholarship 3,200.00 2,000.00 1,200.00

211 · Legal, Accounting, and Planning 9,132.71 7,583.35 1,549.36

212 · Utilities 8,449.26 4,666.69 3,782.57

213 · Pet Control 0.00 300.00 -300.00

214 · Office Supplies 2,345.79 2,916.67 -570.88

215 · Insurance & Bonding 7,351.21 5,250.00 2,101.21

219 · Other Operating Expenses 984.30 0.00 984.30

220 · Garbage 368.80 1,458.34 -1,089.54

221 · City Park Maintenance 5,241.04 8,400.00 -3,158.96

223 · Maintenance & Supplies 4,123.64 6,650.00 -2,526.36

226 · Other 90.00 0.00 90.00

228 · Street Lights 2,180.62 9,333.33 -7,152.71
244 · Fuel (Gas, Diesel, Propane and other Fuels) 2,726.60 700.00 2,026.60

Total B-MATERIALS & SERVICES 46,193.97 49,258.38 -3,064.41

E-Other Contingency Funds 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00

241 · Mileage 96.38 437.50 -341.12
6560 · Payroll Expenses 66.84 0.00 66.84

Total Expense 95,585.28 99,809.25 -4,223.97

Net Ordinary Income 4,265.60 53,454.23 -49,188.63

Net Income 4,265.60 53,454.23 -49,188.63
 



 9:20 PM
 02/09/23
 Accrual Basis

 City of Ione
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual-Water Utility Fund

 July 2022 through January 2023

Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

101 · Cash on Hand 0.00 161,000.00 -161,000.00

114 · Utility Collection 70,937.89 82,250.00 -11,312.11

Total Income 70,937.89 243,250.00 -172,312.11

Gross Profit 70,937.89 243,250.00 -172,312.11

Expense

A-PERSONAL SERVICES

201 · Maintenance 14,914.38 13,183.37 1,731.01

202 · City Clerk 10,786.75 12,133.35 -1,346.60

203 · Payroll Tax

OR - Unemployment Company 100.84

203 · Payroll Tax - Other 2,316.87 3,150.00 -833.13

Total 203 · Payroll Tax 2,417.71 3,150.00 -732.29

204 · Employee Benefits 3,744.99 6,533.35 -2,788.36

206 · Temporary Labor 0.00 5,833.35 -5,833.35

Total A-PERSONAL SERVICES 31,863.83 40,833.42 -8,969.59

B-MATERIALS & SERVICES

210 · Materials & Services 1,247.82 0.00 1,247.82

211 · Legal, Accounting, and Planning 4,710.82 5,833.35 -1,122.53

212 · Utilities 1,444.03 2,333.35 -889.32

214 · Office Supplies 879.41 2,333.35 -1,453.94

215 · Insurance & Bonding 4,266.04 0.00 4,266.04

219 · Other Operating Expenses 29.90 525.00 -495.10

222 · Power and Pumping 5,605.37 13,416.69 -7,811.32

223 · Maintenance & Supplies 2,571.18 7,157.50 -4,586.32

224 · Water Testing 4,023.60 2,333.35 1,690.25

225 · Contract Services 0.00 2,041.69 -2,041.69

226 · Other 0.00 7,955.54 -7,955.54

244 · Fuel 762.43 350.00 412.43

Total B-MATERIALS & SERVICES 25,540.60 44,279.82 -18,739.22

C-CAPITAL OUTLAY
252 · Equipment Repair 0.00 14,729.19 -14,729.19

Total C-CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 14,729.19 -14,729.19

D-TRANSFER FUNDS

270 · Reserve 60.00

275 · Special Water Account 32,149.00 32,149.00 0.00

Total D-TRANSFER FUNDS 32,209.00 32,149.00 60.00

E-Other Contingency Funds 0.00 56,170.34 -56,170.34

6560 · Payroll Expenses 53.40 0.00 53.40

Total Expense 89,666.83 188,161.77 -98,494.94

Net Ordinary Income -18,728.94 55,088.23 -73,817.17
Net Income -18,728.94 55,088.23 -73,817.17

 Page 1 of 1



 10:02 PM
 02/09/23
 Accrual Basis

 City of Ione
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual-Special Water Account Fund

 July 2022 through January 2023

Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

101 · Cash on Hand 0.00 41,427.00 -41,427.00

103 · Interest 11.07 58.35 -47.28

132 · Transfer from Water Fund 0.00 32,149.00 -32,149.00

Total Income 11.07 73,634.35 -73,623.28

Gross Profit 11.07 73,634.35 -73,623.28

Expense

E-Other Contingency Funds

291 · Loan Payment Interest 8,068.61 8,068.61 0.00

293 · Loan Payment Principal 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00

Total E-Other Contingency Funds 8,068.61 18,068.61 -10,000.00

123 · Transfer from Water Utility 0.00 -32,149.00 32,149.00

Total Expense 8,068.61 -14,080.39 22,149.00

Net Ordinary Income -8,057.54 87,714.74 -95,772.28
Net Income -8,057.54 87,714.74 -95,772.28

 Page 1 of 1



 10:10 PM
 02/09/23
 Accrual Basis

 City of Ione
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual-State Street Fund

 July 2022 through January 2023

Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

101 · Cash on Hand 0.00 123,337.00 -123,337.00

116 · State Highway Apport. 15,702.04 15,660.20 41.84

140 · WCVED Grant 0.00 100,000.00 -100,000.00

146 · ODOT Small City Allotment 94,478.00 0.00 94,478.00

Total Income 110,180.04 238,997.20 -128,817.16

Gross Profit 110,180.04 238,997.20 -128,817.16

Expense

A-PERSONAL SERVICES

202 · City Clerk 120.00 875.00 -755.00

203 · Payroll Tax 219.55 700.00 -480.45

204 · Employee Benefits 556.97 933.35 -376.38

205 · Street Maintenance 2,173.75 4,375.00 -2,201.25

206 · Temporary Labor 0.00 583.35 -583.35

Total A-PERSONAL SERVICES 3,070.27 7,466.70 -4,396.43

B-MATERIALS & SERVICES

211 · Legal, Accounting, and Planning 650.00 0.00 650.00

227 · Street Repair & Maint. 133,339.64 199,700.00 -66,360.36

228 · Street Lights 1,221.16 2,041.66 -820.50

229 · Equipment Operation & Maint. 0.00 2,916.69 -2,916.69

244 · Fuel 18.34 175.00 -156.66

245 · Vehicle and Euipment Puchases 0.00 875.00 -875.00

Total B-MATERIALS & SERVICES 135,229.14 205,708.35 -70,479.21

E-Other Contingency Funds 0.00 13,056.75 -13,056.75

6560 · Payroll Expenses 4.56 0.00 4.56

Total Expense 138,303.97 226,231.80 -87,927.83

Net Ordinary Income -28,123.93 12,765.40 -40,889.33
Net Income -28,123.93 12,765.40 -40,889.33

 Page 1 of 1



 10:05 PM
 02/09/23
 Accrual Basis

 City of Ione
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual-State Revenue Sharing

 July 2022 through January 2023

Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

101 · Cash on Hand 0.00 22,426.00 -22,426.00

122 · State Revenue Sharing 1,739.46 2,059.75 -320.29

Total Income 1,739.46 24,485.75 -22,746.29

Gross Profit 1,739.46 24,485.75 -22,746.29

Expense

B-MATERIALS & SERVICES

210 · Materials & Services 0.00 3,500.00 -3,500.00

225 · Contract Services 0.00 11,641.50 -11,641.50

Total B-MATERIALS & SERVICES 0.00 15,141.50 -15,141.50

Total Expense 0.00 15,141.50 -15,141.50

Net Ordinary Income 1,739.46 9,344.25 -7,604.79
Net Income 1,739.46 9,344.25 -7,604.79

 Page 1 of 1



 3:54 PM
 02/09/23
 Accrual Basis

 City of Ione
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual-Special Capital Outlay

 July 2022 through January 2023

Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

101 · Cash on Hand 0.00 744,560.00 -744,560.00

144 · Waste Water Funds and Grants 

Amercian Rescue Funds 36,426.84 36,426.84 0.00

CREZ Funds 0.00 200,000.00 -200,000.00

ICABO Engineer Design Funds 0.00 175,000.00 -175,000.00

Total 144 · Waste Water Funds and Grants 36,426.84 411,426.84 -375,000.00

Total Income 36,426.84 1,155,986.84 -1,119,560.00

Gross Profit 36,426.84 1,155,986.84 -1,119,560.00

Expense

B-MATERIALS & SERVICES

210 · Materials & Services 221.00 805,966.00 -805,745.00

211 · Legal, Accounting, and Planning 924.39

255 · Engineering Design 123,116.46 350,000.00 -226,883.54

Total B-MATERIALS & SERVICES 124,261.85 1,155,966.00 -1,031,704.15

Total Expense 124,261.85 1,155,966.00 -1,031,704.15

Net Ordinary Income -87,835.01 20.84 -87,855.85
Net Income -87,835.01 20.84 -87,855.85

 Page 1 of 2



 
 

CITY OF IONE, OREGON 
Resolution Number: 2023-01 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING 

 A REQUEST FOR FEDERAL FINANCING THROUGH THE  
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE (USDA) 

FOR A WASTEWATER PROJECT 
 

 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined on the basis of the current Construction Work Plan that 
financing is needed for a wastewater system in the City of Ione proper.  The cost estimates and 
loan budget for the borrowers (City of Ione) is as follows: 
 
The estimated Federal funding from The United States Department of Agriculture  (USDA) 
requested for the project is $4,500,000.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Ione, Oregon makes application to 
USDA for a  loan in the approximate amount of $1,500,000 to be used in accordance with the 
provisions set forth by the USDA  to finance the wastewater system. 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, that the USDA guaranteed loan shall bear a maturity date to cover an 
approximate period of 20-40 years. 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, that the Ione City Council authorizes its Mayor, Council Chair, or 
Council appointed designee(s) to execute and attest to all necessary papers, advance requests, 
documents, and applications related to the loan. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Ione City Council hereby authorizes the USDA to 
release appropriate information and data relating to the application to any existing supplemental 
lenders. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
ADOPTED by the Ione City Council this 13th day of February 2023. 
   

 
 
   
Michael Skow, Mayor 

 
ATTEST by the City Recorder this 13th day of February 2023. 
 
 
 
 
    
 Elizabeth Peterson, City Administrator 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF VOTES: 
 
Michael Skow, Mayor  
Beverly Benson, Council Chairman  
SaBrina Bailey Cave, Councilor  
Jason Carson, Councilor 
Christopher Cave, Councilor  
Mark Patton, Councilor  
Brian Spivey, Councilor  

  



 
 

CITY OF IONE, OREGON 
Resolution Number: 2023-02 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING 

 A REQUEST FOR FEDERAL FINANCING THROUGH THE  
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (DEQ) 

FOR A WASTEWATER PROJECT 
 

 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined on the basis of the current Construction Work Plan that 
financing is needed for a wastewater system in the City of Ione proper.  The cost estimates and 
loan budget for the borrowers (City of Ione) is as follows: 
 
The estimated funding from The Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) requested for the 
project is  $5,700,000.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Ione, Oregon makes application to DEQ 
for a  loan in the approximate amount of $5,700,000 to be used in accordance with the 
provisions set forth by the DEQ to finance the wastewater system. 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, that the DEQ guaranteed loan shall bear a maturity date to cover an 
approximate period of 1-2.5 years. 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, that the Ione City Council authorizes its Mayor, Council Chair, or 
Council appointed designee(s) to execute and attest to all necessary papers, advance requests, 
documents, and applications related to the loan. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Ione City Council hereby authorizes the DEQ to release 
appropriate information and data relating to the application to any existing supplemental lenders. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
ADOPTED by the Ione City Council this 13th day of February 2023. 
   

 
 
   
Michael Skow, Mayor 

 
ATTEST by the City Recorder this 13th day of February 2023. 
 
 
 
 
    
 Elizabeth Peterson, City Administrator 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF VOTES: 
 
Michael Skow, Mayor  
Beverly Benson, Council Chairman  
SaBrina Bailey Cave, Councilor  
Jason Carson, Councilor 
Christopher Cave, Councilor  
Mark Patton, Councilor  
Brian Spivey, Councilor  

  



 
1  

CITY OF IONE 
ORDINANCE 2023-01 

WASTEWATER SYSTEM REGULATIONS 
 
 

SECTIONS Page(s) 
Table of Contents  

 

TOC: 

Section 1: 

Section 2: 

Section 3: 

Section 4: 

Section 5: 

Section 6: 

Section 7 

Section 8: 

Section 9: 

Section 10: 

Section 11: 

Section 12: 

Section 13: 

Section 14: 

Section 15: 

Section 16:

  

Table of Contents………………………………………….…………..Page 1 
 
Definitions………………………………………………………Page 2 
 
Special Capital Outlay Account………………………………………Pages 2-3   
 
Operation and Maintenance Account……………………………...Page 3 
 
Application For Service...…………………………………………Page 3 
 
Collection of Payments………………………………………….Page 3 
 
Wastewater Service Charges………………………….………….Page 3  
 
Connection Fees…….………………………………………….Pages 3-4 
 
Connection Required…………………………………………...Page 4  
 
Connection Permits……………………………………………..Page 4 
 
Permit Applications Process…………………………………….Page 4 
 
Connection Inspections…………………………………………..Page 5 
 
Prohibited Substance in Wastewater System…………………...Page 5 
 
Interceptors……………………………………………………………..Pages 5 
 
Tampering or Interfering, Penalty………………………………Page 6 
 
Inspections……………………………………………………...Page 6 
 
Violation and Penalties…………………………………………Page 6  



 
2  

Section 1:  Definitions 
 
Administer:  Shall mean the City Administrator.  
 
City:  City of Ione  
 
Customer Or User:  An applicant who has been accepted under the terms of these 
regulations. 
 
Director: Shall mean the Public Works Director. 
 
Garbage: shall mean all putrescible waste, except sewage and body wastes, including waste 
accumulated of animal, food, or vegetable matter, and including waste that attends the 
preparation, use, cooking, dealing in or storing of meat, fish, fowl, fruit and vegetables; and 
shall include all of such wastes or accumulations of vegetable matter of residences, 
restaurants, hotels and places where food is prepared for human consumption. The term 
"garbage" shall not include recognized industrial by-products, nor shall it include cans, 
boxes, cartons, papers or other objects which have food or other organic materials of any 
nature in or adhering thereto. 
Industrial Waste:  Shall mean the liquid wastes from industrial processes as distinct from 
sanitary sewage. 
 
Occupant:  The owner, tenant or legal agent of a building or room are the people who reside of 
is their place of business. 
 
Owner:  Includes a mortgagee in possession and means one or more persons, jointly or 
severally in whom is vested:  
1. All or part of the legal title to the property; or, 
2. All or part of the beneficial ownership and a right to present use and enjoyment of the 

premises. 
Ph:  shall mean the acidity or alkalinity of the sanitary or industrial waste. This is equal to 
the hydrogen ion concentration as measured by the logarithm of the reciprocal of the weight 
of hydrogen ions in grams per liter of solution. 
  
Tenant:  A person entitled under a rental agreement to occupy a dwelling unit to the 
exclusion of others, including a dwelling unit owned, operated or controlled by a public 
housing authority. Also includes lessee. 
 
Wastewater System:  The individual septic tanks and wastewater lines, and lift stations to the 
City’s drain field. 
 
Section 2:  Special Capital Outlay Account:   
The proceeds of loans or grants the City receives from the United States Department of 
Agriculture (USDA), Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) or other government 
agencies for sewerage system construction shall be credited to a fund entitled "Special 
Capital Outlay Account." Federal and State grants shall be expended only for such sewage 
treatment facilities or purposes as are authorized by Federal and State law or regulation. 
Other monies in the Sewer construction Account may be expended for any other costs of 
construction of the sewerage system of the City.  



 
3  

Section 3:  Operation And Maintenance Account:    
All Payments and collections of sewer service charges under this Chapter shall be deposited 
in the Operation and Maintenance Account of the Sewer Revenue Account established by 
this ordinance and shall be used exclusively for the operation, maintenance and repair of 
the wastewater system for the City. Such account also may be used to pay reasonable 
administration costs and expenses of collection of the charges and connection fees imposed 
by this ordinance. 
 
Section 4:  Application For Service:  
Each applicant for sewer service shall sign an application form provided by the City giving the 
date of application, location of premises to be served, the date the applicant desires services 
to begin, the address for mailing the billings. Such application may be a joint application for 
water and sewer service.  An applicant must and pay a deposit.  
 
Section 5:  Collection Of Payments:  
If sewer charges are not paid when due by any customer whose premises are served or who 
are subject to the charges herein provided, water service provided to that customer by the 
City Water Department may be discontinued. Such unpaid charges may also be recovered 
through a City contracted collection agency long with interest or delinquency charges.  
 
Section 6:   Wastewater Service Charges: 
Charges for Service: All customers whose premises have connection with the wastewater 
system of the City shall be charged for using the system. Such charges and rates will be set by 
resolution of the City Council as needed.  
 
Billing for Charges: The monthly rates for the wastewater  system use shall be added to 
the water bill of each user of the City water system. 
 
Delinquent Charges: Wastewater charges shall become due and payable on the 1st day of 
the month. If charges are not paid before or on the due date, the City may discontinue 
service following their written protocol. Any delinquent account not paid in full by the1st 
day of the month shall also be assessed an overdue payment charge $25.00 a month.  Such 
delinquent charge shall be assessed each month while sewer service is provided and the bill is 
delinquent. Any delinquent charges owed by a customer at one address served by the sewerage system 
must be paid before connection to water and sewer service at a new address. 
 
Section 7  Connection Fees: 
1. Fees for Connections: The owner of all houses, buildings or other properties used for 

human occupancy, employment, recreation or other purposes, having a septic system 
situated within the City of Ione proper at the time of construction will not pay for the 
connections.  All vacant lots that, in the judgment of the Council of the City, may be 
served by such a system.  All connection fees will be waived for connections during initial 
construction.  Connection is mandatory. 

 
2. Payment of Fees: Applicants for connections to be made after completion of 

construction of the system shall pay all cost of making the connection.  Connections are 
mandatory. 

 



 
4  

 
3. Special Connections, Fees: Connections made to vacant lots within the City at the 

same rates as for residential construction therein.  All connection fees will be waived for 
connections during initial construction.  Connections are mandatory. 

 
Section 8  Connection Required: 
1. Failure to Connect: If the City learns of any property within the City that fails to 

comply with the provisions, the City shall promptly send the owner written notice of 
noncompliance and stating that within ninety (90) days after receipt of the notice, the 
owner, at the owner's expense, shall connect the premises to the public sewer. For 
purposes of this section notice shall be deemed to have been received upon the mailing 
of said notice by certified or registered mail directed to the owner at the owner's last 
known address. Connections are mandatory for all properties with water service.  Upon 
the failure of the owner to connect said premises to the public sewer system as required, 
the Administrator will inform the owner of their right be heard before the City Council.  
The Director may proceed to connect the premises to the public sewer system and the 
cost collected is enforced as provided in ORS 223.505 et seq as those statutes currently 
exist or are amended. The lien shall bear interest at the rate of 8% per annum from the 
date of entry on the City lien docket. The lien shall be superior to all other lien to the 
extent allowed under Oregon law. In addition, for failure to connect the sewer as 
required by the notice described above, the City may turn off water to the property 
provided the notices required by the City’s Water and Wastewater Policy. 

 
2. Owner Responsibility: The City shall not be liable for any cleaning, maintenance, 

upkeep, or repair to any wastewater connection between the main and the premises 
served, whether in the public right-of-way or not, unless the necessity thereof is clearly 
attributable to an action of the City.  When a service is unused for any period of time 
resulting in any portion of the service being unsatisfactory, then the City shall charge 
the cost of making any necessary repairs or replacements, prior to providing sewer 
service to the customer. 

 
Section 9  Connection Permits: 
No person shall make any sewer connection to the wastewater system of the City without 
making application and securing a permit. 
 
Section 10  Permit Application Process: 
1. Application for sewer connection shall be made in writing in the form prescribed by 

officials of the City. 
2. Application for sewer connection permits must conform with provisions of any ordinances 

and other applicable laws regulating excavation in or under streets or alleys. 
3. The application is approved and the fees paid as provided, the City will work with the 

applicant in obtaining the connection permit.  The permit will specify he location where 
said connection shall be made. 

 
 
Section 11  Connection Inspections: The City shall be given reasonable notice to allow 
inspection of a sewer connection before completion, and while the connections are still 
uncovered. All work is to be done in accordance with the specifications.  Specifications 



 
5  

shall require the use of the type of sewer pipe that is used in the laterals. The manner of the 
connection shall be subject to the approval of the City official designated or the contracted 
advisor to inspect the work. 
 
Section 12  Prohibited Substance In Sewer: N o person shall discharge or cause to be 
discharged any of the following described waters or wastes to the C i t y  wastewater system: 
 
1. Any liquid or vapor having a temperature higher than 150 degrees Fahrenheit. 
2. Any water or waste which may contain more than 100 parts per million, weight, of fat, 

oil or grease. 
3. Any gasoline, benzene, naphtha, fuel oil, or other flammable or explosive liquid, solid 

or gas. 
4. Any ashes, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags, feathers, tar, 

plastics, wood, paunch manure or any other solid or viscous substance capable of 
causing obstruction to the flow in sewers or other interference with the proper operation 
of the sewerage works. 

5. Any waters or wastes having a pH lower than 3.5 or higher than 9.0 or having any other 
corrosive property capable of causing damage or hazard to structures, equipment and 
personnel of the sewage works. 

6. Any waters or wastes containing a toxic or poisonous substance in sufficient quantity 
to injure or interfere with the wastewater system. Constitute a hazard to humans or 
animals or create any hazard in receiving waters at the drain field. 

7. Any waters or wastes containing suspended solids of such character and quantity that 
unusual attention or expense is required to handle such materials at the lift stations 
or drain field.  

8. Any noxious or malodorous gas or substance capable of creating a public nuisance.  
 
Section 13  Interceptors: 
1. Grease, oil and sand interceptors shall be provided by restaurants, filling and service 

stations. The City may require interceptors on other building sewers when required to 
comply with the provisions of Section 4-4-12 including, but not limited to, proper 
handling of liquid wastes containing grease in excess amounts, or any flammable 
wastes, sand, and other harmful ingredients, except that interceptors shall not be 
required for private living quarters or dwelling units. All interceptors shall be properly 
designed and of the type and capacity required to remove and/or reduce the level of 
undesirable substances as provided for in Section 4-4-12 and shall be located so as to 
be readily and easily accessible for cleaning and inspection. 

2. Grease and oil interceptors shall comply with the Uniform Plumbing Code, be sized 
and designed to reduce the levels of grease and oil without pass through and be 
constructed of impervious materials capable of withstanding abrupt and extreme 
changes in temperature. They shall be of substantial construction, watertight, and 
equipped with easily removable covers which when bolted into place shall be 
watertight. 

3. Where installed, all grease, oil and sand interceptors shall be maintained by the owner 
at his expense, in continuously efficient operation at all times. 

 
Section 14   Damaging Or Tampering:   
No person shall injure or in any manner interfere with or remove any pipes, pumps, 



 
6  

samplers, appurtenances, facilities or other property belonging to the City or used in 
connection with the City sewer system. No person without authorization from the City 
may open any w a s t e w a t e r  lift station or enter into or tamper with any w a s t e w a t e r  
lift station or City property at the drain field.  Any person violating provisions of this section 
shall be charged for all standard costs associated with repairing the results of such 
injury or interference. Any person who inadvertently damages property belonging to the 
City or used in connection with the City sewer system may be charged with a criminal 
offense and/or shall be charged for all standard costs associated with repairing such 
damage including, but no limited to, labor, materials and overhead. 
 
Section 15 Inspections:   
The Director or contracted designee with proper credentials and identification shall have 
the authority to inspect all buildings and premises, except the interiors of dwellings as often 
as may be necessary, for the purposes of inspection, observation, measurement, sampling, 
testing and enforcement. 
 
Section 16  Violation And Penalties: 
1. A violation of a provision of this Ordinance shall be punishable by a fine not to exceed 

Five Hundred and No/100 ($500.00) Dollars. 
2. Every full business day during which an activity continues to be conducted in violation 

of this chapter shall be considered a separate offense. 
3. Offenses under this Chapter may be tried as a crime.  
 


	January 10, 2023 Minutes.pdf
	February 2023 Agenda Packet.docx.pdf
	January 2023 Financial.pdf
	January 2023Checks
	January 2023 Deposit Detail

	Binder2.pdf
	State Street Budget.pdf
	Sheet1

	Binder1.pdf
	Ordinance 2023-1 Sewer Use Ordinance.pdf
	Section 16  Violation And Penalties:

	Resolution for Authority to Undertake Project DEQ Resolution 2023-02.pdf
	ADOPTED by the Ione City Council this 13th day of February 2023.
	ATTEST by the City Recorder this 13th day of February 2023.

	Resolution for Authority to Undertake Project 2023-01.pdf
	ADOPTED by the Ione City Council this 13th day of February 2023.
	ATTEST by the City Recorder this 13th day of February 2023.

	February 2023 Agenda.pdf
	State Revenue.pdf
	Sheet1

	Special Capital Outlay Balance.pdf
	Sheet1

	General Fund Balance.pdf
	Sheet1

	Special Water Fund.pdf.pdf
	Sheet1

	Water Fund.pdf
	Sheet1







